Contract

Between

School District #105

Douglas County, Oregon

And

Association of Reedsport Educators

July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2028

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article

Preamble	1
Article 1 - Status of Agreement	2
Article 2 - Successor Agreement	3
Article 3 - Grievance Procedure	4
Article 4 - Rights of Professional Employees	8
Article 5 - Teacher Work Year	
Article 6 - Teaching Hours and Preparation Time	13
Article 7 - Extra Duty/Co-Curricular Assignments	16
Article 8 - Extracurricular Activities	
Article 9 - Teaching Conditions	20
Article 10 - Reimbursement for Travel Expenses	22
Article 11 - Vacancies & Assignments	24
Article 12 - Teacher Evaluation	27
Article 13 - Leaves	
Article 14-Extended Contracts	
Article 15 - Sabbatical Leave	
Article 16 - Maintenance of Classroom Control & Discipline	
Article 17 - Personal Life	
Article 18 -Dues and Payroll Deductions	
Article 19 - Insurance	
Article 20 - Professional Compensation	
Article 21 - Miscellaneous Provisions	
Article 22 - Association Rights and Responsibilities	
Article 23 - Complaint Procedure	47
Article 24 - Layoff/Recall	48
Article 25 - Tuition Reimbursement	
Article 26 - Strikes	
Article 27 - District Rights	
Article 28 - Funding	
Article 29-Fair Share Agreement.	
Article 30 - Personnel Files	
Article 31 - 403(b) Benefit.	
Article 32 - Distance Leaming/Instructional Technology/Satellite Teaching	
Article 33 - Signature Page	
Appendix A-1 - 2022-2023 Salary Schedule	
Appendix A-2 - 2023-2024 Salary Schedule	
Appendix A-3 - 2024-2025 Salary Schedule	
Appendix B -2018-2021 Salary Schedule Index	
Appendix C - Insurance Plan Costs	
Appendix D - Article 19 from 2016-18 Contract	••••

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into this 1st day of July, 2025 and between the Association of Reedsport Educators, hereinafter called the Association, affiliated with the Oregon Education Association (OEA) and the National Education Association (NEA), and School District No. 105, Douglas County, Oregon, hereinafter called the District or Board.

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS the parties have, as a result of negotiations, reached an understanding on a contract,

Now, therefore, it is agreed between the parties as follows:

Article 1 - Status of Agreement

A. The District recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative for all regular full-time and regular part-time (half-time or more) licensed employees and registered teaching employees employed by the District in teaching positions. This does not apply to registered teachers only teaching during Brave session.

В.

C.

Principals, supervisors, substitutes, confidential employees, less-than-half-time teachers and temporary employees are excluded from the bargaining unit. Notwithstanding these exclusions, temporary teachers hired under temporary contract prior to the first contract day of each school year for one (1) full school year shall be considered part of the bargaining unit. After sixty (60) consecutive work days temporary teachers will be eligible for health insurance benefits, appropriate salary schedule placement and the leave provisions of Article 13. If a temporary teacher is hired at the outset of the temporary contract for more than sixty (60) consecutive days, he/she will be eligible for health insurance benefits, appropriate salary schedule placement and the leave provisions of Article 13 on the first day of work.

The District will maintain 75% of the Reedsport Community Charter School teaching staff full-time equivalent (FTE) as licensed bargaining unit members with up to 25% may be registered teachers. Percentage calculations will not include volunteers, college instructors and non-registered instructors whether paid or not paid. (College instructors will be used to teach only courses which add to the district curriculum and do not reduce current bargaining staff teaching assignments.) IF the District is unable to meet this factor a District/Association committee will be formed to develop a recommendation for presentation to the Charter School Advisory Board and subsequently the District School Board. The committee will be composed of three Association appointed members, two District administrators and one of the community members of the Charter School Board.

It is understood that the terms of this Agreement, in cases of direct conflict, shall prevail over existing policies, rules, regulations, procedures, and practices of the District. The District agrees that no teacher covered by this Agreement shall suffer a loss in compensation as the result of the execution of this Agreement, unless such reduction, if any, is specifically set forth in this Agreement. Furthermore, the Association will be given prior notice and an opportunity to provide input to the Board before final adoption of any change in Board policy affecting teacher working conditions.

D. There shall be two (2) signed copies of the Agreement for the purpose of of the Contract and one (1) by the Association. Within one (1) month of atification of this Agreement by both parties, the Board shall email each bargaining unit member a PDF of the contract and place a read only PDF of the contract on the District website. Additionally, the Board will provide five (5) copies to the local Association president.

Article 2 - Successor Agreement

- A. The provisions of this Agreement shall be effective July 1, 2025 and shall continue to remain in full force and effect up to and including June 30, 2028 and shall be binding upon the Board, the Association, and its members, and shall remain in fu)) force throughout the contract period.
- B. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties, except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties.
- C. This Agreement shall automatically be renewed from year to year following the above expiration date and shall be binding for additional periods of one (1) year unless either the Board or the Association gives written notice to the other not later than December 15 prior to the aforementioned expiration date of the Agreement, of its desire to modify the Agreement for a successive term or to terminate the Agreement. In the event either party gives such notice, this Agreement, together with all the terms, conditions, and effects thereof shall expire on the date above indicated.
- D. Once the notice is provided according to Section C, the parties agree to begin negotiations no later than February 1 of the year the contract expires.

Article 3- Grievance Procedure

A. **Definitions**

I. **Contract Grievance** - A claim by a teacher or the Association that a specific provision of this contract has been violated.

Policy Grievance - A claim by a teacher or the Association that a specific District policy has been violated. Policy grievances are not appeadable to arbitration nor subject to an unfair labor practice complaint.

- 2. **Grievant-A** "grievant" is the person or persons, or the Association, making the claim.
- 3. **Party in Interest** A "party in interest" is the person or persons making the claim and any person who might be required to take action or against whom action might be taken in order to resolve the claim.
- 4. **Days** The term "days" shall mean days when school is in session (school days), except where otherwise indicated and except during the summer recess when such shall mean normal business days, exclusive of weekends and holidays.

B. **Purpose**

The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, solutions to the problems affecting teachers which may from time to time arise. Both parties agree that these proceedings will be kept informal and confidential as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.

C. Time Limits

The number of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits specified may, however, be modified by mutual agreement. Should the District fail to respond within any of its time limits, then the grievance will be deemed denied and the grievant will be allowed to appeal the grievance to the next step. Should the grievant fail to appeal the grievance within the stated timelines, then the grievance will be considered waived.

D. Year-End Grievances

In the event a grievance is filed at such time that it cannot be processed through all the steps in this grievance procedure by the end of the school year, and if left unresolved until the beginning of the following school year could result in irreparable harm to a party in interest, the time limits set forth herein may be reduced so that the grievance procedure may be exhausted prior to the end of the school year or as soon thereafter as is practicable.

E. Labor Management Committee (LMC) Meetings:

The District and ARE agree to use this tool for the purpose of maintaining communications in order to cooperatively discuss and resolve problems of mutual concern to improve the work place. The LMC is made up of union members and administrators who meet on an agreed upon time frame to discover, discuss, and resolve issues or problems that may arise within the contract or outside the contract.

1. The committee will establish operating guidelines, make such guidelines available to every member of the committee and review the rules on an annual basis. 2. The LMC will meet a minimum of one (1) meeting per month. The committee will record its proceedings through the committee with meeting minutes. 3. The committee shall consist ofup to 8 members, with a minimum of two voting members, representing the Association and the same numbers with respect to the District. In addition, the District and the Association will each have additional slots they may designate for an observer or speaker. The intent of the additional positions for the District is to encourage other members of both ARE and District to observe and participate in this process or address the committee when needed.

F. Levels of Grievance

1. Level One - Principal or Immediate Superior (Contract and Policy Grievance)

A teacher with a grievance shall first discuss it with his/her principal or immediate superior, either directly or through the Association's designated representative, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. Level One must be instituted within twenty (20) days after the occurrence which gave rise to the grievance or within twenty (20) days from the time the grievant should reasonably have known of the occurrence that gave rise to the grievance. The principal or immediate superior shall have ten (10) days to render a decision to the grievant.

2. Level Two - Superintendent (Contract and Policy Grievance)

If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level One, the grievant may appeal that decision by filing the grievance with the Association. The Association, upon review of the grievance, may file the grievance in writing with the superintendent. All appeals to the superintendent must be made within ten (10) days from the receipt of the decision at Level One. The grievant has the right to request a meeting or a hearing with the superintendent. The grievant may be represented by the Association at any hearings or meetings with the superintendent. The superintendent shall have fifteen (15) days from receipt of the appeal to render a decision.

3. Level Three- Board (Contract and Policy Grievance)

- a. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Two, within ten (10) days after receipt of the superintendent's decision, the grievant may appeal the grievance to the Board.
- b. This request shall be submitted in writing through the superintendent, who shall attach all related papers and forward them to the Board.
- c. The Board shall review the grievance on the basis of the original complaint and attendant-related materials, unless a hearing before the Board is requested in writing by either party.
- d. The Board shall render a decision in writing within twenty (20) days ofreceipt of the appeal if no hearing is requested. If a hearing is requested, the Board shall hold such hearing within ten (10) days of receiving request for a hearing. A copy of the Board's decision shall be retained by the superintendent, one (1) sent to the

- grievant, one (1) to the chairperson of the grievance committee and one (1) to the immediate supervisor.
- e. Decisions reached by the Board on a policy grievance shall be final and binding on all parties concerned.

4. Level Four - Arbitration

- a. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Level Three, within fifteen (15) days from receipt of the Board's decision, the grievant may, with the written consent of the Association, request arbitration. Such notice must be in writing and directed to the superintendent and Board chairperson.
- b. Within ten (10) days after such written notice of submission to arbitration, the superintendent and the Association will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator and to obtain a commitment from such arbitrator to serve. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator or to obtain such a commitment within the 10-day period, a request for a list of arbitrators will be made by the Association to the Employment Relations Board. Upon receipt of the list of arbitrators, the parties will select the arbitrator in accordance with the procedures established by ERB.
- c. The arbitrator so selected will confer with the representatives of the superintendent and the Association and hold hearings promptly and will issue his/her decision not later than twenty (20) days from the date of the close of the hearings, or if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date the final statements and proofs are submitted to him/her. The arbitrator's decision will be in writing and will set forth his/her findings of fact, reasoning, and conclusions upon the issues submitted. The arbitrator will be without power or authority to make any decision which requires the commission of an act prohibited by law or which alters, amends, or modifies any of the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have no power to decide any question which, under this Agreement, is within the specifically reserved discretion of the District to decide. The arbitrator shall conduct the arbitration in accordance with the rules published by the American Arbitration Association. The decision of the arbitrator will be submitted to the Board and the Association and will be final and binding upon the parties.
- d. The costs for the services of the arbitrator, including per diem expenses, if any, his/her travel and subsistence expenses, and the cost of any hearing room will be borne equally by the Board and Association. All other costs will be borne by the party incurring them.

G. Rights of Teachers to Representation

1. Teachers and Association

Any grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself/herself or, at his/her option, by a representative of the Association. The Association shall have the right to be present and to state its view at all stages of the grievance procedure.

2. Reprisals

No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Association and the Board or by any member of the administration against any party in interest, any representative, any member of the Association, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

H. Miscellaneous

1. **Group Grievance**

If a grievance affects a group or class of teachers, the Association may submit such grievance in writing to the superintendent directly with copies to the principal(s), and the processing of such grievance shall commence at Level Two. The filing of such group grievance shall be in accordance with the initial filing timeline as specified in subparagraph E.l above. The Association may process such a grievance through all levels of the grievance procedure.

2. Writing Requirements

Decisions rendered at Level One which are unsatisfactory to the grievant and all decisions rendered at levels two and three of the grievance procedure, shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore, and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest and to the Association. All grievances that are not resolved at the infonnal level are required to be submitted in writing and shall contain a synopsis of the facts upon which the grievance is based, cite the specific contract provision(s) (or policy if applicable) allegedly breached, the remedy requested, and the date the grievant talked with the immediate supervisor.

3. Separate Grievance File

Documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file, and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the grievants.

4. Meetings and Hearings

Meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public and shall include only such parties in interest and their designated or selected representatives, heretofore referred to in this article. This provision is subject to the Public Meetings Law.

5. The Association and the grievant will be required to exhaust the grievance procedure set forth in this article, including arbitration, before seeking alternative remedies, provided that

- by doing so they will not be deemed to have waived or otherwise prejudiced any constitutional, statutory, or other legal rights that they may have.
- 6. For the purpose of assisting a teacher or the Association in the prosecution or defense of any contractual, administrative, or legal proceedings, including but not limited to grievances and Fair Dismissal proceedings, the Board shall permit a teacher access to and the right to inspect and acquire copies of his/her personnel file and any other files or records of the Board which pertain to the teacher or any issue in the proceeding in question. A representative of the Association may accompany and assist the teacher in this regard or may be authorized by the teacher to review such information. Confidential letters of reference secured from sources outside the school system may be excluded from the materials available for the teacher's inspection.

Article 4 - Rights of Professional Employees

A. No member of the bargaining unit shall be disciplined without just cause. However, any action resulting in the dismissal of a contract or probationary teacher, non-extension of a contract teacher or the nonrenewal of a probationary teacher will not be considered part of this Agreement nor grievable under Article 3, Grievance Procedure. Such matters are governed exclusively by the Accountability for Schools for the 21st Century Law (ORS 342.805 to ORS 342.934).

Any scheduling of meetings regarding employment issues will be done verbally and followed by a written confirmation. Reports of any decisions arising from such meetings will be given in person. Administrators will provide at least one-day advance notice of such meetings including notice of the right to representation and will attempt to schedule such meetings at the end of the work day. However, based on the administrator's judgement, such meetings may be held immediately, with representation, if it is determined it is an emergency and there is a potential for assignment of administrative leave.

Negative criticism by a supervisor, administrator, or Board member of an employee shall be made in confidence.

- B. A decision by the Board to dismiss or non-renew, a probationary teacher will be afforded the following:
 - 1. Notice of the charges, or reasons, for which dismissal or nonrenewal is being considered;
 - 2. Notice that dismissal or nonrenewal is being considered; and,

С.

3. The opportunity to be heard by the Board prior to the time the Board makes its decision on dismissal or nonrenewal of the probationary teacher. The discussion with the Board shall be limited to perceived procedural violations only. The probationary teacher may be represented by the Association at such meeting with the Board.

Only the procedural aspects of Section Bare subject to Article 3, Grievance Procedure; nothing in Section B is intended to limit or qualify in any way the dismissal/nonrenewal exclusion set forth in Section A above. Section B does not apply to temporary employees.

- The Board retains its prerogative with respect to requiring any employee to appear before the Board, superintendent, or other designated supervisory agent thereof concerning any matter relating to the employee's work. The Board agrees that, should such required meeting be of a nature serious enough to jeopardize the employee's continued employment, salary, or status in the District, the employee shall be given notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview, be entitled to Association representation should the employee so desire, and be given a written statement of the reasons for such meeting or interview. This provision does not apply to evaluation conferences. However, a teacher will be granted, upon request, a meeting with the evaluator to discuss the results of any evaluation conference. The teacher may be accompanied by a representative at such a meeting.
- D. The teachers will have the right and responsibility to determine grades and other evaluations of students. No grade or student evaluation shall be changed without first discussing the matter with the teacher involved unless it is determined the grade was unlawful. If a grade or student evaluation

is changed over the objection of the teacher, the person or persons making the change will so indicate in writing and assume all responsibility for such change. Upon request, the teacher shall be given written reasons for such change.

- E. Junior/Senior High School students assigned to any lab-oriented, or specific equipment required classroom, will be limited to a safe number as detennined by the administrator in consultation with the instructor.
- F. Employees will receive training and access to necessary equipment and software for posting of grades electronically. Following training, grades shall be posted within a reasonable time but no more than once every two weeks. Teachers shall not share security codes with students or other teachers. However, teachers will not be liable for any system failure or security breaches outside the teacher's control that result in the violation of student confidentiality.
- G. Teachers shall enjoy freedom and in classroom presentations and discussions. Selection of appropriate grade-level, supplemental materials, shall include consultation with members of the grade level or content area colleagues and the building principal. Controversial materials that are presented and discussed shall be relevant to the course content in accordance with the curriculum program of the District and shall be age appropriate. The Board retains the right to establish the curriculum program.
- H. A teacher may advise his/her supervisor of his/her preference in the area of substitute teacher selection. Teachers will follow the procedures written by the District and approved by the Association when putting in leave.
- I. No teacher shall suffer any fonn of reprisal from the District for exercising any rights provided by this Agreement or for Association membership or activity.
- J. Any plan developed to restructure buildings to meet federal mandates shall be developed in cooperation with the Association.
- K. Leaming Communities

The opportunity for professionals to consult with each other regarding best practices and to evaluate the success of the current programs for meeting the needs of students is vital. Administrators will seek input from teachers regarding the professional development Program each year. The Association may provide additional input as it deems necessary.

- L. With regards to student scheduling, student grouping and staff assignments, teachers will work collaboratively with building principals in developing plans that maintain safe, efficient, and effective working/learning environments, including special education case-loads. If teachers and principals are unable to achieve agreement on student scheduling or staff assignments through a collaborative process, the superintendent will be notified by either party and the superintendent will facilitate a process in an effort to resolve the matter. Ultimately, scheduling and staffing decisions will be made by the District, but a collaborative, problem-solving approach shall be maintained.
- M. All classrooms shall have doors that lock. Each classroom shall have a locking desk or filing cabinet drawer to store IEP's, 504's and any other confidential material. Teachers will stay current on IEP's and 504's and participate in meetings either in person or via a written fonn regarding those subjects. It will be the District's responsibility to provide a secure platfonn,

where updated electronic files with current IEP and 504 accommodations for all students are stored.

N. For required personal cell phone use the RCCS Athletic Director and Student Services Coordinator/Dean of Students shall receive a monthly stipend of \$30.00 per month when school is in session.

0. Intellectual Property

- 1. The ownership of any materials, processes, or inventions developed solely by an employee's individual effort, time and expense shall vest in the employee. If copyrighted or patented, it will be done by the employee in the employee's name.
- 2. The ownership of materials, processes, or inventions produced solely for the employer, using employer supplied materials, resources and on the employer's time shall vest in the employer. If copyrighted or patented, it will be done by the employer in the District's name.
- 3. In instances where material, processes, or inventions are produced by an employee with employer support or by way of use of employer's time, facilities, and/or other resources, the ownership of the materials, processes, or inventions shall vest jointly with the employer and employee designated by written agreement between the employer and employee. In the event there is no such written agreement executed, the ownership shall vest equally with the employee and employer.

P. Class Sizes and Caseloads

- 1. Labor Management Meeting will review class size issues that arise.
- 2. No member shall have a final special education caseload of more than 30 students. Should the caseload exceed 30 students the District shall pay the teacher the following in the June payroll:
 - 1-3 students over the cap . \$500 per year
 - 4-6 students over the cap . \$1,000 per year
 - 7+ students over the cap -> \$2,000 per year

Article 5-Teacher Work Year

- A. The Association shall be allowed advisory input into the development of the school calendar by meeting with District representatives and presenting its recommendation.
- B. The teacher work year with a five-day work week_shall not exceed 190 (191 for newly hired staff) contract days nor include more than 175 student contact days, and shall include the following:
 - 1. Six (6) paid_holidays which shall be Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Veteran's Day, Christmas, New Years, and Memorial Day;
 - 2. During the three inservice days at the beginning of the year one (1) teacher work day will be scheduled, free of District-initiated meetings or duties. Newly hired teachers will work four days during in-service for the purpose of orientation/training and additional planning time. ARE will be provided an opportunity to plan inservice with the administration.
 - 3. One (1) day is reserved for grading and teacher work at the end of each grading period with the grading day occurring prior to the start of Brave session for any grading period ending prior to or Brave Session. At the end of Brave session teachers will have one half day early release for grading and teacher work. At least two (2) hours per quarter scheduled on no-student, teacher work day, will be provided to prepare progress reports. (See Article 4. F)
 - 4. The District has the right to institute curriculum days as needed within the 190 days.
 - 5. Conference scheduling will be developed by collaboration between the staff and administration. Compensatory time will be provided as mutually agreed by the District and Association. In consultation with building principals, staff shared between buildings shall split their conference time in each building as determined by their assigned schedule.
 - C. The teacher work year with a four-day shall not exceed 176 days (177 days for newly hired) nor include more than 153 student contact days, and shall include the following:
 - 1. Six (6) paid holidays which shall be Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Veteran's Day, Christmas, New Years, and Memorial Day.
 - 2. During the three inservice days at the beginning of the year one teacher work day will be scheduled free of District-initiated meetings or duties._Newly hired teachers will work four days during in-service for the purpose of District-planned orientation/training and additional planning time. ARE will be provided an opportunity to plan inservice activities with the administration.
 - 3. One (1) day is reserved for grading and teacher work at the end of each grading period with the first semester grading day occurring prior to the start of Brave session. At the end of Brave session teachers will have one half day for grading and teacher work.
 - 4. The District has the right to institute curriculum days as needed within the 176 days.
 - 5. Conference scheduling will be developed by collaboration between the staff and administration. Compensatory time will be provided as mutually agreed by the District and

Association. In consultation with building principals, staff split between buildings shall split their conference time in each building as determined by their assigned schedule.

6. The hour equivalency of nine (9) Learning Community Days X 8 Hours to be used for professional development and collaboration, working with students, preparation time, or other work deemed necessary by the District and developed in collaboration with the building leadership team. The District will make reasonable efforts to spread out the Learning Community Days/Hours so that there are opportunities for professional improvement and implementation of that **which** is learned.

D. Extensions

The District shall meet with the Association regarding extensions necessitated in order for the District to acquire and maintain compliance with OAR 581-022-1620. Nevertheless, teachers shall be reimbursed at the current scheduled rate for an extension which is necessitated in order for the District to acquire and maintain compliance with OAR 581-022-1620. and which increases the normal workday building hours beyond that which is provided in Article 6.

Extended work calendar <u>days</u> which are provided with at least 10 weeks' notice will be attended by members who have been assigned the dates. If a member does not or cannot attend such mandatory extended work calendar days, then the employee will use appropriate leave for their absence.

The District will infonn the Association of extensions necessitated in order for the District to maintain compliance with appropriate laws, regulations, or best practices.

Mandatory extended calendar days must occur either the week directly following the end of the school year or the week before the scheduled inservice.

Mandatory professional development shall not exceed five (5) days per school year calendar unless agreed upon in advance through the Labor Management meeting process.

E. The District retains the final authority to determine the school calendar and extensions.

Article 6 - Teaching Hours and Preparation Time

A. The normal workday hours for teachers in a five-day week_shall be eight (8) hours inclusive of the one-half (1/2) hour lunch period. Full-time teachers shall be on duty and available for work on the school site, or the site otherwise designated by the District, for such above period of time on days when teachers are to report. On Fridays and days before holidays, employees may be released after the departure of students.

The normal workday hours for teachers in a four-day week when students are in attendance shall be eight and three quarters (8.75) inclusive of one thirty-five minute duty-free lunch period. Full-time teachers shall be on duty and available for work on the school site, or the site otherwise designated by the District, for such above period of time on days when teachers are to report. When students are in attendance on the last day prior to holidays, employees may be released after the departure of students.

Bargaining unit members may request that the principal or immediate supervisor approve of a work schedule that begins fifteen (15) minutes to one-half (1/2) hour prior to the established building reporting and departure times. The granting of such a flexible work schedule is at the discretion of the principal or immediate supervisor. Such work schedule changes may be approved on a one-time only basis, temporary basis, or on an ongoing basis, subject to the principal or immediate supervisor's right to temporarily suspend the flexible schedule or to terminate the flexible schedule with one week's notice when possible.

Staff working in both buildings shall have their building meeting schedule set at the beginning of each year. With timely notice, the predetermined schedule may be modified to meet the needs within either building as cooperatively determined by the building principals and teacher(s). With five (5) days prior notice, such building meetings may be scheduled beyond the normal contract day.

- Teachers shall receive a one-half (1/2) hour duty-free lunch period in a five-day work week and thirty-five (35) minutes in a four-day work week. Teachers may leave the building with notice to the administrator during the scheduled lunch period. Teachers may leave the building during their designated preparation time with prior approval from the building administrator.
- C. Classroom teachers shall, in addition to their lunch period, have daily preparation time on the following basis: All teachers shall receive no less than fifty (50) continuous minutes per teacher workday. However, at the elementary school the preparation time may be divided into two segments of time. (e.g. 30/20; 15/35) During this preparation time, teachers shall not be assigned to any other duties.

В.

D. The equivalent of one (1) days of preparation time will be scheduled in the months prior to the start of Brave Session for secondary staff and one-half day at the end of Brave Session for grading Elementary staff will have one (1) day of grading/preparation/conference time when the charter school is prepping for Brave Session. In the event that Brave Session is instituted at the Elementary School this day will be used for preparing for the Brave Session. In the event the Brave Session is not instituted at either building, staff would not receive this one (1) day of grading/preparationtime.

E. Loss of Preparation Time

- 1. Unless the principal objects, it is agreed that teachers may voluntarily give up their preparation time to substitute for absent teachers when such absence is due to non-school related purposes, with prior notice to the principal. In these cases, no "compensation" will occur.
- 2. Teachers who are directed to use their preparation period substituting for another teacher, as provided herein, shall be compensated time-for-time at the District's substitute rate. Nothing herein shall prevent teachers from volunteering to assist each other at no cost to the District.
- F. In addition to normal workday hours, teachers shall spend time to the extent necessary in preparation for classroom instruction, and shall be in attendance for conferences, open houses, staff meetings and curriculum development meetings.

The timing and frequency of regular staff meetings will be discussed in a collaborative manner with teachers and administrators at the beginning of the year. Administrators will provide an agenda for regular staff meetings the day prior to the meeting.

- G. Zero Period. Teachers who agree to teach a "zero" period class, will either have their consecutive eight-hour day adjusted so that they are not scheduled to work more than eight hours in one day or shall be compensated for the time beyond their eight-hour day at their hourly rate.
- H. When the District operates on a four-day work week, the buildings will have the following schedules:

The charter school shall not exceed a seven (7) period day student schedule with no more than one advisory period per week and the District may add intervention periods as needed or by incorporating the advisory curriculum in the core curriculum. The District will bargain any increases in student contact time that may result from this addition under 243.712; however, the initial timeline for bargaining will be reduced to 90 days.

Highland morning and afternoon recess will be fifteen(] 5) minutes in length. Recess coverage will be done by classroom assistants as allowable to provide preparation time for teachers on a rotational basis as designed by the building staff.

Note: Please reference note under C to allow an HES team to develop a workable preparation schedule regarding recess duty scheduling.

I. Job Sharing

- 1. Job sharing is defined as two bargaining unit members voluntarily fulfilling the obligations of a full-time position.
- 2. Employees who desire to job share must submit a written plan (schedule, workload division, insurance split, etc.) to the Superintendent and the building principal by the last working day in February of the year prior to the job share. The District retains the right to grant or deny any requested job share.

- 3. If the District approves a job-sharing proposal, it is agreed the benefits will not exceed the cost of benefits for a single employee holding the position. Each party will be paid a salary at fifty percent (50%) of his/her respective salary step (or the equivalent pro-ration of the work day for each employee.)
- 4. All terms and conditions of the collective bargaining agreement (excluding fringe benefits addressed in Section 3, above) will be pro-rated based on the appropriate level of FTE (e.g. sick leave, preparation time, holidays, etc.).
- 5. Individuals who share positions who wish to return to full-time teaching will have the same rights as full-time staff members in requesting transfers, but are not guaranteed the position of their choice or a full-time position if there is no vacancy. When a shared staffing arrangement is entered into to reduce layoffs, the individuals shall have the right to return to the level of FTE held prior to the shared staffing as established when the plan is approved.
- 6. All job sharers must be in attendance for the entire time of the in-service, including professional development in-service and parent conference days at their regular half-time rate of pay. The building administrator may also require job sharers to attend staff meetings with at least twenty-four (24) hours written notice.
- 7. If one partner of the job share is absent, the District may request the other partner to cover the absent partner's work time. If the partner works the additional time, he/she will be paid at his/her hourly rate.

Article 7 - Extra Duty/Co-Curricular Assignments

A. The following pay schedule shall apply to District required teacher participation, Board approved extra-duty/co-curricular activities which extend beyond the regular school day. These positions are deemed to be "when used" and are filled at the discretion of the District on an annual basis.

Group Assignment

- A. Activity/Athletic Director if combined with a full-time classroom teacher assignment. If the assignment duty is combined with a full time Dean of Students and/or partial teaching assignment/AD position, then the stipend will be one-half pay, with flexible time off to compensate contest supervision duties time as cooperatively detennined by the building principal.
- B. Head Football, Head Volleyball, Head Basketball, Head Wrestling, Head Baseball, Head Track, Head Esports, District-wide Choir/Band Director (with Pep Band responsibilities.), and Head Softball, and District-wide Program Coordinators.
- C. Cross Country, Swimming, Golf and Annual Advisor. High School Student
 Council

 Advisor when assigned weekly student leadership/supervision activities
 and not
 given a scheduled class period.
 - D. Assistant Football, Assistant Volleyball, Assistant Basketball, Assistant Wrestling, Assistant Baseball, Assistant Track, Assistant Softball, Clay Target, Assistant Golf Coach, Drama Coach, K-12 Language Arts Coordinator, K-12 Mathematics Coordinator, K-12 Social Studies Coordinator and K-12 Science Coordinator and Title I/III, (Note: Title I/III position will continue to perform the same functions, including some summer work, but will no longer be eligible for extended contract.).
 - E. District-wide Choir/Band Director (without Pep Band responsibilities), Academic Coach, Rally Advisor, Equestrian, Bowling, *N2* Coaches, 504 Coordinator (District-Wide) and Dance Team.
 - F. High School building level Testing coordinators and High School Newspaper, and 504 Coordinator (Building Level).
 - G. Reedsport Academy Coordinator/Alternative Education Clerk, FBLA Advisor, Knowledge Bowl Advisors, High School Student Council Advisor when provided a student leadership period or prep period, National Honor Society, Jr. High School Football, Basketball, Track, Volleyball, Wrestling, and Cross Country. Head PE/Health Coordinator, K-12 Fine and Performing Arts Coordinator, K-12 Foreign Language Coordinator, K-12 Reading Coordinator, K-12 Technical Education Coordinator, After school clubs (i.e. gaming and Archery).
 - H. Head Class Advisors, Junior High School Poetry Contest Director, and School to Work Coordinator, Junior High Student Council Advisor, TAG Coordinator.

A. Salary Schedule

Base Salary (BA Step 0):

D.

F.

Experience	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	Н
0-1	14.50%	12.25%	10.25%	8.25%	6.75%	5.25%	4.25%	2.25 %
2-4	15.00%	13.25%	10.75%	8.75%	7.25%	5.75%	4.75%	2.75 %
5+	15.50%	14.25%	11.25%	9.25%	7.75%	6.25%	5.25%	3.25 %
*to+	16.00%	15.25%	11.75%	9.75%	8.25%	6.75%	5.75%	3.75%

*To be eligible for the 10+ year salary, years must be based on coaching experience within the District.

C. Grant-Based Positions: Filling of grant-based positions requires receipt of grants dollars and will be paid in accordance with the grant criteria (i.e. ASPIRE)

Extra-duty/co-curricular positions will be offered to qualified personnel on a voluntary basis; however, the District retains the right to assign personnel to such duties if the position(s) remain(s) unfilled. Prior to assigning personnel to such duties, the District shall post a list of unfilled positions in each building and solicit volunteers at least six (6) weeks prior to the beginning of each season unless an emergency exists due to a resignation. The provisions of Article 4, A Gust cause) do not apply to extra-duty/co-curricular assignments. Should the District contract with an individual outside of the bargaining unit it may choose to not pay any salary but in no case shall the District pay a salary that exceeds the schedule amount.

E. An annual fund will be budgeted for coaches to attend coaching clinics:

\$3,300

The fund will be dispersed through the recommendation of the Athletic Director except for his/her own training when the AD will go the principal for approval. At the discretion of the Athletic Director, and with approval/agreement of the building principal, Coaches may be assigned to attend coaching clinics and the cost of said clinics shall be deducted from the fund provided herein.

- Teachers on the extra-duty schedule will be eligible for elevation to the successive steps based upon their years of experience and at the discretion and recommendation of the administration. Out-of-district experience may be considered.
- G. If vacancies exist in extra-duty/co-curricular positions, nothing in this article shall restrict the District's right to go outside of the bargaining unit to fill such vacant extra-duty/co-curricular positions if, it its discretion, it desires to do so.
- H. The Association may, on behalf of individual teachers, consult with the superintendent on the need for additional positions and stipends in Section A above. Any such additions must be approved by the Board; if approved, such additions will be added to Section A above.
- I. Recipients of extra-duty/co-curricular pay shall furnish the District with an annual report of activities. In addition an annual performance evaluation will be completed by a building administrator (or AD if designated by building principal), which will include and employee self-evaluation and input from the athletic director.

- J. After an extra-duty/co-curricular contract has been issued, the District may declare the contract null and void due to budget constraints or inadequate student turnout.
- K. Stipends for all assignments included in this article may be split between no more than two (2) individuals. The principal or athletic director may choose to split the stipend. The two individuals must agree to the split.

Note: The parties will form a committee to study/recommend other revisions/modifications to this assignment section, which could be added to the successor contract through Memorandum of Agreement.

Article 8 - Extracurricular Activities

These positions are deemed to be "when used" and are filled at the discretion of the District. At the beginning of each school year and at least two weeks prior to each new season, the District will first offer extracurricular activity positions to members of the District staff for a five (5) day period prior to offering the non-District staff.

A. Teachers who perform the following extracurricular assignments shall be compensated m accordance with the following schedule:

Assignment

Athletic	Activities	Proctor
Aunenc	Activities	FIOCIOI

\$30 per event
\$20 per event
\$40 per event
\$30 per event

FilmNideo Tape Camera Operator \$18/person per event

Proctors (school, bus, dance, concessions,

concerts, auditorium, intramurals*) \$25/person per event

Ticket Sellers \$18/person per event

\$20 per game

\$20 per match

Scorekeepers, Announcers, Starters, Clerk recorders, and Timers/Clock operators.

Volleyball Scorekeepers, Announcers,

line judges, libero tracker and

timers/Clock operators.

Football Chain Crew \$20 per game

Tutors \$20 per hour

- B. Extracurricular assignments will first be offered via email to all personnel on a voluntary basis; however, ifnecessary, the District retains the right to assign personnel to such assignments. Prior to any such assignments, the District will solicit volunteers.
- C. The District retains the right to use non-bargaining unit personnel to perform these duties. Should the District use an individual outside the bargaining unit it may choose not to pay that individual but in no case shall the rate of pay exceed the schedule amount.

^{*} Must be a defined intramural program approved by the administration.

Article 9 - Teaching Conditions

A. **Duplicating Facilities**

The Board agrees to make available copying facilities in each school. The District agrees to make computers available in each school with the provision that prior approval is necessary to use building computer labs. District office computers are not available for use by the Association.

B. Facilities for Teachers

The Board shall make available in each school: lunchrooms, restrooms, and a telephone in each classroom and for teacher use. Tobacco use by bargaining unit members shall not be permitted on District grounds or in District facilities.

C. Inclement Weather/Emergency Closures

Teacher attendance shall not be required whenever student attendance is not required due to inclement weather or other unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the Board. Teachers' pay will not be docked for days missed, provided, however, that the Association agrees that, at the Board's option, teachers shall make up any lost instructional time without additional compensation. The District agrees to consult the Association regarding the timing of any make-up days. However, teachers shall not be required to work more than one hundred ninety (190) total workdays in a five-day week structure and one hundred seventy-six (176) in a four-day week structure.

D. Licensure Requirements

Teachers and registered teachers are required to maintain a current copy of all licensures and endorsements in their personnel file in the administrative building.

Teachers are required to maintain all licenses and endorsements that they have at the time they are hired by the District and that they are actively teaching or have been assigned to teach within the last five (5) years. Employees may not pay to have any license or endorsement removed during the duration of the license period.

No teacher shall be required to be the teacher of record for classes being taught by non-licensed teachers when they are not in direct sight and sound of such programs. Volunteers must be supervised by licensed employees.

E. Safe Working Conditions

The District and the Association recognize the importance of safe-working conditions. Each member shall immediately report any unsafe or hazardous condition to the member's supervisor and the Safety Committee. The Safety Committee shall provide the member with a written response within (4) business days after receiving the report.

The Safety Committee shall include two (2) ARE members; one from HES and one from RCCS who will participate in monthly safety meetings. The Association will select and report the names of the two members by September 15th of each school year to the Superintendent.

Safety committee minutes will be posted in a specified location.

A committee to review and develop a visitor policy to comply with the Title I requirements will be established as a part of the annual Title I Parent Involvement Policy Review. The policy will apply District-wide.

- F. Lead Teacher: At its discretion the District may fill and assign "lead teacher" positions within the following parameters:
 - 1. The purpose of a "lead teacher" position shall be to provide an identified substitute for the administrators in instances where they are out of the building and where the "lead teacher" assignment is activated.
 - 2. A teacher's acceptance of and continuation in a "lead teacher: position shall be voluntary and the teacher shall not be entitled to continuation of the "lead teacher" assignment from school year to school year. If a teacher wishes to resign from a "lead teacher" position, the resignation shall take effect at the end of the current year.
 - 2. A "lead teacher" shall remain a member of the bargaining unit and as such shall not be assigned any activity or duty that would endanger his/her status as a bargaining unit member, including, but not limited to participating in the evaluation of other employees.
 - 3. The District shall reimburse the "lead teacher" for reasonable pre-approved expenses related to his/her assignment as a "lead teacher". If the District directs the "lead teacher" to work beyond his/her normal work year and/or workday on "lead teacher" related duties, the teacher shall be compensated at his/her hourly rate.
 - 4. For any day the "lead teacher" position is activated the teacher holding the position shall be compensated at an additional \$50 per day. Partial days shall be prorated based on the percentage of the day in the position.

G. Training

- 1. When the District selects new software or hardware that is required use for teachers, training on that actual software and/or equipment shall be given prior to implementation. The District shall not require use of equipment that is not working.
- 2. Prior to being held accountable for using new software or hardware, sufficient practice shall be given to reach proficiency as determined by the superintendent's designee.

Article 10 - Reimbursement for Travel Expenses

- A. Teachers required or approved by the District to utilize their personal automobiles for District business shall be reimbursed at Internal Revenue Service rates.
- B. Teachers required by the District to attend out-of-town activities shall be reimbursed for expenses incurred at the rates outlined in District Policy DLC-AR. If the rates increase during the life of this agreement, the rates will be raised to match them. Itemized receipts shall be required for payment eligibility and must be submitted within 30 days of the occurrence.

C. Mileage

1. Teachers required in the course of their work to drive personal automobiles from one school to another shall receive a mileage reimbursement at the current IRS rate. Mileage reimbursement requests shall be submitted for approval on a monthly basis. The same mileage reimbursement shall be given for the use of personal automobiles used for field trips, workshops, or other business of the District if such use of personal automobiles for school business is approved by the superintendent. It is also understood the IRS Rate will be fixed each July 1 to June 30 of each year.

D. Food and Lodging Allowance

- 1. Payment for food and lodging shall be as outlined below and District Policy DLC-AR.
- 2. When the District determines the location of the training, the District will fully cover the cost of lodging and parking. When the employee schedules the travel, the District will consider the actual cost oflodging, meals, and parking when the actual cost of these exceeds the rates established in Policy DLC-AR. When the District determines that exceeding the rates in policy is necessary, then the District will cover those costs.

Article 11 - Vacancies & Assignments

- A. Teachers who are employed by the District during any given year shall be notified in writing of their anticipated assignments for the ensuing year, including Brave Session, as soon as possible but not later than the end of the teachers' work year, except **in** extenuating or unforeseen circumstances.
- B. Teachers newly hired prior to the beginning of any school year shall be notified in writing of their assignments as soon as practicable, but not later than August 1, except in extenuating circumstances.
- C. Any bargaining unit member notified of a new assignment after August 1, unless hired after that date, will be given at least one day and up to three (3) extended contract days to prepare for the new assignment.

D. Request for Reassignment

- 1. The Board recognizes that it is desirable in making assignments to consider the interests and aspirations of its professional employees. Requests by a professional employee for reassignment to a different position shall be made in writing; one copy of which shall be filed with the superintendent and the affected principal(s), and one copy of which shall be filed with the Association. The application shall set forth the reasons for the request, the position sought, and the applicant's academic qualifications. The Board or administration will act upon such request within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof by granting the request, denying the request, or by indicating that judgment will be reserved on the request until a later date. Written reasons for denial of a request for reassignment will be provided upon request of the employee affected. The District shall grant priority reassignment rights to an employee not currently under a LCA who requests to transfer out of a position provided the position he/she is seeking is open.
- 2. A vacancy shall be a newly created position or a position that the District has decided to fill once all assignments are completed. Any vacancy existing or becoming available shall be made known to the current staff by posting such notice with an accompanying job description on the faculty room bulletin board in each building and via District email and website. Any such vacancy shall be posted for at least five (5) school days before being filled to allow time for current staff to apply. In the event a position becomes available when school is not in session staff shall be notified District email and the District will post the vacancy on the District's website. If a position is created or becomes open less than one week prior to the start of the school year, the emergency posting limit will be three (3) days.

E. Involuntary Reassignment

- 1. When a teacher is involuntarily reassigned, he/she will have an opportunity to make known to the appropriate administrators his/her wishes regarding a new assignment.
- 2. Notice of an involuntary reassignment will be provided to a teacher as soon as possible.
- 3. An involuntary reassignment will be made only after a meeting between the teacher and the administrator, at which time the teacher will be notified of the reason for the reassignment.

- 4. Teachers being involuntarily reassigned will be informed of appropriate vacancies known at the time the decision is being made. The teacher being involuntarily reassigned will have two days to observe, plan and/or learn the curriculum with the individual currently in the position, or independently if the individual currently in the position is unable to collaborate, prior to the reassignment taking effect. If a teacher is immediately reassigned they will retroactively receive the two days through the next payroll.
- 5. Any teacher who is involuntarily reassigned during the school year or on or after August lsth shall be granted at least one (1) day and may, upon request, be granted up to five (5) days of release time to prepare for the new assignment. Any teacher who is notified of an involuntary reassignment for the following school year may apply for an extended contract, in accordance with Article 15.

F. Re-employment of Retired Employees

Licensed employees who retire from the Reedsport School District and who are subsequently rehired by the District are members of the bargaining unit represented by the Association of Reedsport Educators. All contractual rights and benefits under the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be afforded to re-employed unit members except those expressly set forth below as exclusions.

- 1. Mid-Year Retirement: When it is advantageous within the PERS system for eligible employees to retire prior to the end of the school year and the bargaining unit member and the district wish to minimize the disruption for students by employing these retirees for the remainder of the school year, the following conditions will apply:
 - a. The retiree will be issued a temporary contract and remain a member of the bargaining unit with all the rights, privileges, and obligations under the current negotiated agreement except those removed in this section.
 - b. The District will pay the retiree on a per diem basis based upon the annual salary of the retiree at the date of retirement. No PERS shall be paid.
 - c. The retiree shall accumulate one (1) day of sick leave per month, but these days shall not be added to the accumulated total prior to retirement or counted toward any District/PERS retirement benefit. Any personal leave/bereavement days the employee had remaining for the school year of retirement will be credited to the employee. No additional paid leave days shall be available including any sick leave accumulated prior to retirement.
 - d. The District shall continue to provide medical, dental, and vision insurance for the retiree in whatever plan or status the employee was provided prior to retirement. The District shall continue to provide a term life insurance policy equal to the fact value of the policy prior to retirement. No other insurance benefits will be provided.
 - e. The retirement shall not create a vacancy under Article 11 of the negotiated agreement until the end of the current school year.

f. The retiree shall be employed only until the end of the school year in which he/she retired. Should the position exist for the following year, the position filled by the retiree shall be duly posted as a vacancy no later than the end of the school year.

2. Re-Employment of Retired Employees

All positions vacated by the retirement of employees that are going to continue the following contract year, but who wish to return to work for the District, shall be required to apply for employment just as any job applicant new to the District. If the District selects a retiree for open position for re-employment, the following conditions will apply:

- a. Re-employed unit members shall not retain any seniority status accumulated prior to the date of re-hire.
- b. Re-employed unit members are considered new hires and are subject to the salary schedule placement restrictions of Article 20 Section C of the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- c. Re-employed unit members shall accumulate one (1) day of sick leave per month, but these days shall not accumulate to the total prior to retirement. Re-employed unit members will receive personal/bereavement days in accordance with the negotiated agreement.
- d. The District shall continue to provide medical, dental, and vision for the eligible retiree equal to other employees as per Article 19, Section B. The District shall also continue to provide term life insurance equal to the face value of the policy based on current uninterrupted service.
- e. The District shall not be obligated to pay or forward payments to PERS for the reemployed unit member who is already eligible to draw PERS.

Article 12 - Teacher Evaluation

- A. Teachers will be informed of the evaluation policy/procedure in effect at the beginning of the school year and of any changes that later occur. Copies of all relevant forms and policy statements will be provided to the teachers. Teachers working in more than one building will establish student learning and professional growth goals in cooperation with both building administrators. However, only one administrator shall be responsible for compiling written performance measurement document with input from the other administrator as required by the Educator Evaluation Handbook. The District will comply with ORS 342.850 and adopted Board Policy.
- B. The performance of each teacher shall be either informally evaluated or formally evaluated in writing. Probationary teachers shall be formally evaluated at least once during the school year. Contract teachers will be either formally or informally evaluated at least once a year. Teachers may request additional evaluations. Employees shall select artifacts for the evaluation process that are in alignment with professional growth and student learning goals.
- C. Three (3) copies of the written evaluation shall be submitted to the teacher at the time of the personal conference or within ten (10) days thereafter: one (1) copy is to be signed and returned to the administrator, one (1) copy is to be retained by the teacher and one (1) copy will be placed in the employee's District personnel file. Teachers may put objections to evaluations in writing and have them attached to the evaluation report, to be placed in the teacher's personnel file, with a copy to the superintendent. Should the District move to an electronic evaluation document storage system, each employee who is being formally evaluated shall receive physical, date-stamped copies of all information used in the completion of the final evaluation document. The District shall provide the same confidentiality of electronic evaluation files that it provides for personnel files.
- D. Observations of a teacher's work performance shall be conducted openly.
- E. Within a reasonable period of time (4-5 working days) after any formal observation, the observer will give the teacher a copy of the observation summary form. After receipt of the form, the teacher may request a conference with the observer. Teachers may request written suggestions for improvement.
- F. Within a reasonable time (4-5 working days) the evaluator will notify the teacher in writing of performance deficiency(ies) when the evaluator determines that such deficiency(ies) has (have) become serious. The teacher may request that the evaluator provide specific written suggestions for improvement.
- G. If the District determines that a written program of assistance is necessary, the employee shall be notified in writing with a copy to the Association president. The employee has the right to Association representation from the point of notification of intent to be placed on a program of assistance.
- H. The awarding of the annual increment (for those who have not reached the top step of their lane) shall be contingent upon satisfactory teaching performance as determined by the administration through the use of the evaluation procedure. (Eligibility is defined as satisfactory teaching performance. Employees on a program of assistance will not be eligible for step while on a plan. Once a plan is successfully completed, the individual will be granted step.)

- I. Any proposed changes in the Evaluation Policy shall first be presented to the appropriate Joint Evaluation Committee. This committee shall consist of three (3) administrators or Board members and three (3) bargaining unit employees selected by the Association. The Committee shall meet on a non-contract day each June to review applicable Oregon teacher evaluation law, local practices/procedures, and propose any necessary revisions to the Educator Evaluation Handbook to the Board. Teachers shall receive an hourly rate of pay for their non-contract time. The Committee shall review all proposals and shall make recommendations to the Board. No change in the Evaluation Policy shall be effective until it has been reviewed and recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board. No committee formed under this section will discuss or be authorized to discuss tying teacher evaluation to compensation.
 - J. The selection of teacher participants on any committee established to develop the District's Achievement Compacts will be by Association appointment. Teachers will be given proportional representation to other stake holders groups on the committee.

Article 13 - Leaves

A. Sick Leave

- 1. Sick leave shall be defined as a teacher's absence from duty because of an illness or injury to that teacher or to any resident member of the teacher's household or a member of the immediate family as defined in B. 2 below for whom the employee is the primary caregiver. Sick Leave may also be used for others with a serious illness who would qualify under Family Medical Leave, consistent with Board policy. Up to forty hours per year may be used for well-care for immediate family.
- 2. Each full-time teacher shall be granted (10) ten days of sick leave; eighty hours (80 hours of annual sick leave, (eight-hour day per use.) Part-time, partial contract year, and eligible temporary teachers shall receive prorated benefits. Sick leave use will be calculated in hourly increments, with a two-hour minimum.
- 3. Sick leave accrual shall be unlimited in accordance with Oregon law.
- 4. Sick leave accumulated in other Oregon districts may be transferred in accordance with Oregon law.
- 5. Sick leave may be taken in one-hour increments, with a two-hour minimum, if no substitute is needed. If a substitute is needed then sick leave must be taken in four or 8-hour increments. With the prior approval of the administrator, a teacher may adjust his or her regular work hours to accommodate medical/dental situations. Such adjustments shall not be charged against the teacher's sick leave where a substitute is not required.
- 6. Each year of this agreement, any bargaining unit member with perfect attendance (no use of accrued sick leave for the school year August June) may be eligible for the following incentives:
 - a. One eligible bargaining unit member will receive the following year's employee insurance deductible portion paid of \$650.00. This member will be selected by a random drawing in June by the President of ARE and the superintendent during the June Labor Management Meeting.
 - b. All other eligible members will receive \$200, to be paid in June.
- 7. Workers' Compensation, as well as sick leave, is designed to allow the teacher to continue to receive compensation, but is not intended to duplicate any pay due to a compensable injury. Therefore, the District will allow certain deductions from sick leave to complement Workers' Compensation payments in accordance with the provisions of ORS 656.240, and subject to the limit of the teacher's accumulated sick leave.
- 8. Unused sick leave shall not be compensated upon termination, except as reported to PERS upon the retirement of an employee.
- 9. Sick Leave Supplement: When an employee suffering from a serious health condition as defined by FMLA exhausts his/her sick leave due to illness or injury and the employee is not eligible for salary replacement benefits (either on a full or partial basis) through another source, such as Workers' Compensation, disability insurance, PERS benefits, or Social

Security, the Association may request for a personal and/or sick leave donation from members of the bargaining unit with the following conditions:

- a. It is understood the donation is voluntary and a minimum of four hours and a maximum of eight hours may be donated for any occurrence.
- b. An additional donation may be made if all donated hours are exhausted before the employee qualifies for other benefits.
- c. The donated hours will be used in the order in which they were contributed and any hours not used will be credited to a pool for future use. The Association president will be notified by June 30 of each year what days remain in the pool. All days remaining after a request has been made, should any not be used, must be used before any additional request for days is solicited for another person.
- d. It is understood that once an employee agrees to make a donation, that decision is irreversible and the sick leave will not be returned to the donating employee.
- e. Any teacher who has donated a personal]eave day in accordance with this Section may also donate one (1) sick leave day. The personal leave day must be donated before the sick leave day. (16 hours maximum per employee in any given year)
- f. Any Association grievance arising out of the implementation or the provision of Section 8 shall be processed to the Board level only and will not be subject to binding arbitration.

B. Other Leaves

1. Personal Leave

Three (3) days (calculated as twenty-four [24] hours, eight-hour day per use) of such leave shall be granted to each teacher per school year. Part-time, partial contract year, and eligible temporary teachers shall receive prorated benefits. Such leave shall be defined as an event or a condition that requires a teacher's presence during the school day. Personal leave must be taken in no less than four (4) hour increments.

- a. With the exception of an emergency situation, personal leave days must be requested at least one (1) day in advance in writing. Failure to request such days in advance may be cause for the denial of the paid benefit, as determined by the administration. The administration retains the right to deny personal leave if a qualified substitute is not available, but, after discussing with the employee and conferring with the superintendent, all other options will be considered prior to denying the use of personnel leave after initial approval.
- b. Prior to utilization of personal leave, teachers wilJ communicate in writing (e.g. email or other) and request leave in Frontline/AESOP stating that they will utilize the day(s) in accordance with the provisions of this article and submit the form to the principal. If a leave form is required, the leave form will be mutually developed between the parties.
- c. Personal leave days shall not be charged against sick leave.

- d. Personal leave days are noncumulative from year to year.
- e. Within the scope of the conditions and stipulations set forth above, teachers have the right to take the three (3) personal leave days. If at the end of a school year a teacher has any full personal days remaining, they will be paid \$150 for each of the remaining full 8 hour days of personal leave (see schedule below) in the June payroll. Any part of a day used shall be considered as a whole day used for purposes of remuneration under this provision.

Schedule: 8 hours= \$150 16 hours= \$300 24 hours= \$450

2. Bereavement/Life-Threatening Illness Leave

Up to five (5) paid days (calculated as forty [40] hours, eight-hour day per use) may be utilized per year for such leave. An additional five (5) days (forty [40] hours) may be used in accordance with Oregon law. Such leave may be used in the event of a life-threatening illness or death in the teacher's immediate family, which shall include: wife, husband, children, grandchildren, father, mother, grandparents, foster parents, mother-in-law, father-in-law, stepmother, stepfather, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother, sister, sister- or brother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, and nephew or others living in the immediate household at the time of the life-threatening illness or death. Such leave must fall within the intent of the usage so stated.

- a. With the exception of an emergency situation, all such days must be requested at least one (1) day in advance in writing. Failure to request such days in advance may be cause for the denial of the paid benefit, as determined by the administration.
- b. Prior to utilization, teachers shall communicate in writing (e.g. email or other) and request leave in Frontline/AESOP stating that they will utilize the day(s) in accordance with the provisions of this article and submit the form to the principal. If a leave form is required, the leave form shall be mutually developed between the parties. The District administration retains the right to require reasonable evidence of the purpose for leave as provided herein.
- c. Such leave days shall not be charged against sick leave.
- d. Under no circumstances are such leave days to be used for vacation, leisure or recreational purposes.
- e. Such leave is noncumulative from year to year.
- f. Additional time off for purposes as provided herein may be granted at the discretion of the superintendent.
- f. When an employee takes leaves according to these provisions for reasons which also qualify the employee for leave pursuant to FMLA and/or OFLA, the leave used under this section will be counted towards the District's statutory obligations.

C. Legal Leave

The District will grant the time necessary for appearances in any legal proceeding connected with the teacher's employment, or with the school system, or in any other legal proceeding, including jury duty, if the teacher is required by law to attend (i.e., court order, directive, or subpoena). The teacher shall be paid his/her regular salary for all such time, minus any fees paid by the court or party to the action, except for expenses. Except this provision shall not apply if the employee is a party to an action against the District or is the defendant in a criminal proceeding.

D. Association Leave

Up to five (5) days per year shall be granted to the Association or its designated members for use as Association leave. If an employee is elected to a State or regional OEA position, additional days may be granted by the superintendent after considering an annual calendar or duties. The Association will certify that leave requested under this provision will be for the purposes of contract administration or negotiations only. The Association will be responsible for the cost of a substitute. Such leave must be requested in advance through the building principal.

E. Other Leaves

- 1. Other paid leaves may be granted at the discretion of the District. The teacher must provide the District with a notice of his/her intent to return to work the next school year by March 15.
- 2. Other long-tenn nonpaid leaves may be granted at the discretion of the District when the teacher needs to be gone for an extended period of time. The teacher must provide the District with a notice of his/her intent to return to work the next school year by March 15.

F. Professional Leave

Employees may request leave for purposes of continuing professional development. The employee will submit the request in writing with an explanation of the activity and the benefits obtained to the building administrator for approval. The request must be submitted at least ten (10) workdays in advance of the requested date of absence.

- G. Prior to utilization, an employee shall communicate in writing (e.g. email or other) and request the leave in Frontline/AESOP stating that he/she will utilize the day(s) in accordance with the provisions of this article. If a leave fonn is required the leave fonn shall be mutually developed between the parties. The District administration retains the right to require reasonable evidence of the purpose for the requested leave except as stated that for personal leave no information or explanation is required other than confinnation that the leave will be utilized in accordance with the provisions of this article.
- **H.** The District does not believe that excessive occasional absences of the teaching staff is beneficial to the educational environment. Therefore, except for the specific leave options stated in this article, employees will not be allowed to take additional leave without pay unless otherwise approved by the Superintendent.

Article 14 - Extended Contracts

- A. In order to continue a constructive pattern of District curriculum development, District trainings and program continuity, \$21,000 will be budgeted for the purpose of extended contracts, including those currently being funded, not to exceed (2) weeks in length, unless extenuating circumstances demand more time and are so approved.
- B. Requests for extensions shall be submitted on the form provided to the appropriate principal for review and consideration. Attached to said form, each request shall also include a written statement containing, as a minimum, the following:
 - 1. A complete explanation of why the tasks must be performed and how they fit into the Board and District wide goals;
 - 2. Rationale in support of the timelines requested to meet the project objectives;
 - 3. Rationale in support of distinguishing the extension contract project objectives from those duties normally completed within a professional work year.
- C. Extended contracts which are approved will be funded at 100% of the daily rate (1/190) of the employee's contracted salary for the fiscal year in which the work is performed. Whereas the CBA does not specify what happens to extended contracts in the event of a calendar with a different amount of days other than 190, and In an effort to provide clarity for all parties, When calculating the daily rate of pay for employees, the employees salary will be divided by the number of days contracted for the work on the employees current work calendar.
- D. Subject to the funding limitations provided herein, the requests for contract extensions may be granted. Requests for contract extensions which have been properly completed shall not be arbitrarily denied. Reasons for denial shall be given in writing. The granting of requests for contract extensions is discretionary with the District.
- E. Extended contracts shall not be used to compensate for additional time worked on the employee's established normal contract days except at the discretion of the District.
- F. For the purpose of enhanced professional development with a minimum of four weeks of notice, but not Jess than two-week notice in unusual circumstance, contracted half-day professional development days may be extended to a full day by the District and teacher attendance is required. However, if a teacher has proof of a prior engagement, time can be flexed to an alternate day. Teachers shall be compensated for the time at their regular hourly rate.

Article 15 - Sabbatical Leave

A. Purpose

The primary objective of sabbatical leave is to improve the educational offerings to the students of the District by making it possible for selected staff members to improve their teaching by additional study or related educational experiences. Sabbatical leave should also encourage staff members to serve the District for a longer period of time.

B. Eligibility and Selection

The Board may, at its discretion and upon recommendation of the superintendent, grant sabbatical leaves for one (1) academic year or for shorter periods of time. To be eligible for consideration, staff members must have given seven (7) uninterrupted years of service to the District. No more than two (2) sabbaticals in one (1) year will be allowed.

C. **Application Procedure**

Staff members eligible for sabbatical leave must submit their applications prior to March I of the school year before the date the leave would begin. Such application shall contain a description of the proposed sabbatical program and a statement of how such leave would benefit the educational program offered to the students. All such applications shall be reviewed by the superintendent prior to submission to the Board. A copy of the application procedure may be obtained in the superintendent's office.

D. Conditions of Leave

When a sabbatical leave has been approved by the Board, the following conditions shall apply:

- 1. Granting of a sabbatical leave shall obligate the staff member to at least two (2) academic years of subsequent service to the District. The salary advanced by the District during the year of sabbatical leave shall be repaid on a prorated basis if the two-year subsequent service requirement is not fulfilled.
- 2. Academic hours gained during a sabbatical leave shall apply toward horizontal advancement on the salary schedule. Time on leave shall apply as service time to the District for the purpose of increment.
- 3. Sick leave or other fringe benefits shall not continue to accrue during the leave period. However, upon return from a leave, the employee shall have restored to him/her all other rights and benefits previously earned.
- 4. Granting of sabbatical leave shall guarantee the employee a return to the same or similar teaching position held prior to taking the leave.
- 5. Each certified employee granted a sabbatical leave shall be paid compensation at the rate of fifty (50) percent of the gross monthly salary he/she would have received if he/she had taught in the District that year. Salary payments will be made in accordance with the regular payroll procedures of the District. Compensation for leaves of less than one (1) full year shall be prorated accordingly.

Article 16 - Maintenance of Classroom Control & Discipline

- A. The definition of the duties and responsibilities of all administrators, coordinators, supervisors, and other personnel pertaining to student discipline shall be reduced to writing by the District and presented to each teacher at the start of each school year. Such definition of the duties and responsibilities of personnel is a retained right of the Board.
- B. Teachers may refer a student to the principal or other designated administrator for special assistance. For each student so referred, the teacher shall indicate the particular problems, suggest possible steps for their resolution, and complete the student referral form. The principal or other designated administrator will, within a reasonable period of time, deal with the referral. Upon request, the teacher will be provided with a written response from the principal or other designated administrator outlining the action taken on the referral. Final decision-making authority will rest with the principal or other designated administrator.
- C. Teachers may, in compliance with state and federal statutes and administrative regulations, temporarily exclude a student from the classroom when the student's behavior is seriously disrupting the instructional program. The teacher will immediately notify the principal or other designated administrator of the exclusion, the reasons for such action, and complete the student referral form. As soon as practicable, the principal or other designated administrator will arrange for a conference to discuss the matter. At all times, final decision-making authority and the right to place the student in a classroom shall rest with the principal or other designated administrator. Upon request, the teacher will be provided with a written response from the principal or other designated administrator outlining the action taken on the referral. During the period of exclusion from the classroom, the student shall not be the responsibility of the teacher unless otherwise directed by the principal or other designated administrator.

Article 17 - Personal Life/Nondiscrimination

The personal life of an employee outside his/her employment responsibilities is not an appropriate concern for attention of the board, provided that his/her personal life does not interfere with or keep him/her from satisfactorily performing his/her employment responsibilities.

Provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all members without discrimination as to actual or perceived age, marital status, race, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, physical or mental disability, unless based on a bona fide occupational qualification or other protected class or activity covered by law and/or board policy AC.

Article 18- Dues and Payroll Deductions

- A. Upon appropriate written request from the teacher, the District shall deduct from the salary of the teacher and make appropriate remittance for those items presently incorporated under the payroll plan. Should state/federal rules change or a provider alter the parameters of its product/plan document impacting the ability to maintain current deductions, the parties will meet to establish new payroll protocols.
- B. The District shall continue to itemize pay and payroll deductions.
- C. The District shall continue to utilize the OBA-sponsored system as the system for deducting Association dues.
- D. The District will continue its practice of deducting requested deductions, subject to the limitations of the payroll system.
- E. The Association agrees to indemnify and save the Board, all administrators, and District agents harmless against any and all claims, demands, costs, suits, or other forms ofliability, and all court costs that may arise out of, or by reason of, action taken by the District for the purpose of complying with Association dues deductions.

Article 19 - Insurance

- A. The District insurance program shall include the following programs:
 - 1. Medical/prescription: for the term of this Agreement, the District will fully fund the tiered rate coverage for MOOA Plan 5, which shall be the preferred District medical plan (or if the Dogwood plan is no longer exists the closest comparable plan in OEBB). members that enroll in the preferred District major medical plan shall also be eligible to participate in the District sponsored group Health Reimbursement Account detailed below.
 - 2. Dental: for the term of this Agreement the District will fully fund plan 6 without ortho coverage (or if Dental Plan 6 no longer exists, the closest comparable plan). Employees may elect to buy a different dental plan, but the increase in costs between the employee selected plan and MODA Plan 6 will be paid by the employee through payroll deductions. If an employee selects a less expensive dental plan, the difference will be retained by the District.
 - 3. Vision: for the term of this Agreement OEBB Vision coverage will be available to employees that elect to enroll to be purchased at the tiered rate. The cost for vision coverage will be paid by the employee through pre-tax payroll deductions.
 - **4.** Life: Employee-only coverage to an amount not less than \$10,000 with AD&D provisions.
 - 5. Long-Term Disability (LTD):

Major Provisions include:

- a. Eligible Employees: All full-time licensed employees working twenty (20) or more hours per week
- b. Benefit Amount: 66 2/3% monthly earnings, not to exceed a \$5,000 maximum benefit
- c. Benefit Period: To age 65 for injury or sickness if eligibility occurs before age 60
- d. Elimination Period: 90 days for injury or sickness or end of sick leave, whichever is greater.
- e. Employer Contribution: 100%
- f. Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
- 6. Health Reimbursement Account (HRA): the group HRA is to provide reimbursement to members enrolled in the District's preferred medical plan such that the annual deductible amounts are effectively reduced to \$650 per person (with a maximum of three deductibles) and the annual out-of-pocket maximum amounts are reduced to \$4,000 per person (with a maximum of three per family). Reimbursements will be paid according to the HRA documents. Employee is responsible for 100% of the first \$650 in deductible expenses, with the next \$1,450 in deductible expenses being reimbursed at 75% by the group HRA. The employee is also responsible for the first \$3,012.50 in co-insurance

(Moda pays 75%) and co-pay expenses, with the HR.A will reimbursing 100% of the remaining \$2,087.50 coinsurance/copay expenses per person in a family. The HR.A reimbursement is based on the Employer's In-Network Group Health Plan. If you incur out-of-network deductible expenses, then the reimbursement is capped at the in-network reimbursement level.

- a. Group HR.A benefits are available only for qualifying expenses that are described in the MODA Plan 5 certificate of coverage and which are applied to the health plan's maximum out-of-pocket limit including deductible, coinsurance and medical copays. Reimbursements are only available for qualifying expenses incurred in-network while the member is enrolled in the plan or portion thereof or any normal run-out period immediately following the last month District insurance coverage is provided, for medical expenses incurred prior to the final date of insurance coverage. Expenses are incurred when care is provided rather than when the enrollee is billed or payment for the service is made.
- b. Claims for reimbursement must be submitted on or before each December 31 for expenses incurred during the preceding MODA plan year (currently October 1 through the following September 30). Reimbursements are paid from the Explanation of Benefits.
- B. Employees who work for the District and are also covered by insurance coverage of another employee who also works for the District will be eligible to receive only one District insurance contribution for both employees.
 - 1. The amount that the District would have contributed toward the purchase of insurance premiums for the 2nd employee will be used by the District to fund the Health Reimbursement Account.
 - 2. Employees eligible under B. above, will have zero deductible, and eligible for reimbursement from the Health Reimbursement Account plan, at the 20% co-payment rate from the first dollar spent. Further, employees eligible under B., will have a maximum out-of-pocket of \$2,000 per person (3 person maximum).
 - 3. Employees who opt out of insurance coverage will receive no monetary incentive, and the amount the District would have contributed towards any monetary incentive will be used by the District to fund the Health Reimbursement Account plan.
- C. Any employee contribution toward dental or vision insurance premium will occur on the employee's pre-tax salary.
- D. Should OEBB be dissolved and that results in a change in carriers that would impact an employee's right to choose his/her provider, the change requires Association approval. A joint insurance committee consisting of four (4) members of the bargaining unit, no more than four (4) administrators and four (4) members of the classified unit may be called to discuss insurance plan options for the following year.
 - E. Teachers on unpaid leaves of absence shall be allowed to continue in any or all of the above insurance programs by paying the full premium costs, except while on OFLA/FMLA subject to the rules and regulations of the insurance carrier(s).

- F. Employees newly hired into the full-time bargaining unit by the Board shall be eligible for District-paid insurance coverage upon acceptance of the insurance carriers on the first day of the month following the month work commenced. (Less than full-time shall be prorated the cost of the premium according to their FTE.)
- G. The benefit programs identified herein shall be provided only in accordance with the underwriting rules and regulations as set forth by the carrier(s) in the policy retained by the policyholder.
- H. The District's obligation towards insurance herein shall cease in September for employees leaving the District but who complete the contract year or on the first day of the month following the month in which the eligible employee was no longer employed by the District unless altered by separate agreement.

Article 20- Professional Compensation

A. Salary Schedule

The Board and the Association agree on the attached salary schedules (Appendix A-1, A-2, and A-3), which is by this reference incorporated herein for the 2025-26, 2026-27, 2027-28 school years; 3.75% (three and three quarters percent), 3.25% (three and one quarter percent), 3% (three percent) increase each year respectively.

All employees eligible shall receive a step increase. (Eligibility is defined as satisfactory teaching performance. Employees on a program of assistance will not be eligible for step while on a plan. Once a plan is successfully completed, the individual will be granted a step.)

Column A on the salary schedule will be populated with Steps 9, 10, 11, and 12 using 1.405 1.450. 1.495. 1.540 respectively.

Steps 13 and 14 are added to Appendix B Salary Schedule Index and as part of all salary schedules beginning the 2022-2023 school year. The index for each step is as follows:

	Column A	Column B	Column C	Column D
Step 13	1.585	1.655	1.725	1.795
Step 14	1.630	1.700	1.770	1.840

Staff who are on step 12 for the 2021-2022 school year will be moved directly to step 14 for 2022-2023 school year.

Appendix B - Salary schedule Index shall be changed at Step 14 for MA/BA+75 from 1.770 to 1.780 and MA+30/BA+105 from 1.840 to 1.860

A double degree will be considered equivalent to one column movement on the salary scale. If the double degree is earned at the bachelors level, the employee will be eligible for an additional column movement beyond that degree. If the employee earns a masters, the double degree at the bachelor level will still be recognized as one column movement earned, in addition to the masters. Any credits earned after the double degree will continue to be counted toward further column movements.

Longevity Stipends:

The District acknowledges the vital contributions of highly experienced teachers. Therefore, all teachers working for the district for uninterrupted (except for normal break periods) years of service will be paid a milestone longevity stipend specified below through regular payroll in their anniversary month or at the end of their milestone school year, whichever occurs first.

- 5 Years of service shall receive a five-hundred (\$500) dollar stipend.
- 10 Years of service shall receive a one-thousand (\$1,000) dollar stipend.
- 15 Years of service shall receive a fifteen-hundred (\$1,500) dollar stipend.
- 20 Years of service shall receive a two-thousand (\$2,000) dollar stipend.
- 25 Years of service shall receive a twenty-five hundred (\$2,500) dollar stipend.
- 30 Years of service shall receive a three-thousand (\$3,000) dollar stipend.

B. Method of Salary Payment

- 1. Paydays shall be the 20th of each month or the last week day closest to it of each calendar month Augustthrough June. Employees shall be paid in twelve (12) equal payments. shall receive the June and July checks in one lump sum on June 20th.
- 2. Each teacher may request one (1) emergency draw of up to one half (1/2) their regular payroll in the event of a financial emergency. A written request must be filed with the Superintendent to receive a draw. The check will be cut as soon as the District staff is able to do so.
- 3. After a written contract is provided by the District to the employee at the beginning of each school year, or prior to the start of a mid-year assignment, full-year extra-duty assignments contracts under Article 7 will be paid in equal installments during the school year. Partial year assignments will be paid during the term of that assignment in two (2) equal installments. The payment of the final installment is contingent upon completion of the required obligations of the particular assignment.

To receive payment for extracurricular assignments, under Article 8, a teacher must turn in a properly completed time sheet to the District office on or before the 15th of the month.

C. Credit for Former Experience in Schools

Teachers hired by the District will be given full credit for the years of teaching, but no fractional year's credit will be allowed. Only prior experience in an public or private school will be considered. The Board reserves the right to exceed the normal nine-year allowable experience limitation for teachers new to the District when, upon recommendation of the superintendent and because of extenuating circumstances, such action shall be deemed to be in the best interest of the District.

For the 2022-2023 school year, new employees with prior experience will be limited to Step 13 on the salary schedule. Beginning 2023-2024, Step 14 will be available for new employees with prior experience warranting that placement.

When a duly licensed teacher becomes a registered teacher, but maintains a regular teaching license simultaneously, that individual will be paid off the existing salary schedule.

Registered teachers (covered by this contract) will be paid starting at Step O on the salary schedule and shall gain years experience at a rate of I year experience gained for each 2 years taught at Reedsport School District.

D. Credit Experience

By October 15 of each year, a record of credits earned is to be filed with the administrator. If a teacher files enough credits earned during the previous year to qualify for the next educational level that year, a new contract is to be made on the basis of additional salary.

E. Credit for Service in the Armed Forces

Up to three (3) years of service in the armed forces will be counted as teaching experience; provided the veteran was teaching in the District immediately preceding his/her entry into the service, the veteran was involuntarily inducted into the armed services, and the veteran applied for teaching employment with the District within one (1) year after his/her honorable release from active duty.

F. Employees who work with student teacher, and the placement is agreed to by the administrator shall receive any stipend paid by the college or university by submitting an extra-duty timecard approved by the administrator. Teachers will be paid their hourly rate, payroll taxes/benefits will be calculated, and the total shall not exceed the total amount of the stipend. Any tuition credits provided by the college or university shall be offered first to the employee supervising the student teacher.

PERS Pick-Up

G.

- 1. The District shall cease withholding from employees' monthly salaries the contributions required by law, and shall "pick-up," assume and pay a six percent (6%) employee contribution to the Public Employees Retirement and/or the OPSRP fund for the employee members then participating in the Public Employment Retirement and/or the OPSRP System. Such "pick-up" or payment of employee member monthly contributions to the system shall continue for the life of this Agreement.
- 2. The full amount of required employee contributions "picked-up" or paid by the District on behalf of employees pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered as "salary" within the meaning of law for the purposes of computing an employee member's "final average salary" within the meaning of law but shall not be considered as "salary" for the purposes of determining the amount of employee contributions required to be contributed pursuant to law. Such "picked-up" or paid employee contributions shall be credited to employee accounts pursuant to law and shall be considered to be employee contributions for the purposes of law.
- H. When teachers agree to teach a class during their preparation time, they shall be paid for the additional period of teaching at their hourly rate.
- I. The District shall pay employees an instructor stipend of \$500 per year (two semesters) for teaching courses that meet the definition of dual credit for the complete school year. A prorated amount (\$250) per semester if courses taught are not scheduled for the complete school year. A minimum of one (1) student must be enrolled in the course in order to qualify for the dual credit stipend. The payment for completed qualifying dual credit courses shall be included in the regular payroll following each semester.

A. Separability

If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held to be contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect. Upon request of either party, the District and Association will enter into negotiations for replacement language for the illegal provisions.

B. Compliance Between Individual Contract and Master Agreement

Any individual contract between the Board and an individual teacher hereafter executed shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement during its duration, shall be controlling.

Article 22 - Association Rights and Responsibilities

- A. Upon request, the District agrees to furnish to the Association those public, non-confidential documents containing the information which is necessary for its functioning as the exclusive bargaining representative and which is considered with PECBA as amended by HB 2016. The Association bears the cost of production, research, duplication, and presentation incurred by the District in complying with the provisions of this section. The present practice of the District absorbing incidental costs of production will be continued.
- B. Upon request of the building principal by the Association, the Association may be granted permission to utilize school facilities after the employee workday for Association meetings, provided that such meetings shall not interfere with normal school operations and provided that there is custodial staff on duty. Consistent with PECBA as amended by HB 2016, the Association shall have J)aW orientation time (60 minutes) annually during in-service week with all members and within ten (10) days for all newly hired employees (30 minutes) without loss of pay.
- C. The Board agrees that the Association representatives or subcommittee(s) thereof, having business other than negotiations or contract administration, can be placed on the Board agenda in the same manner as any other citizens of the District.
- D. A copy of the Board meeting agendas, non-confidential information provided in the Board packet, and unapproved minutes shall be sent to the Association president.
- E. The Board agrees to make available, in each school, typing and duplicating facilities for Association business at reasonable times, when not otherwise in use during non-work hours. The Association shall pay for the cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use, and for any repairs necessitated as a result thereof.
- F. The District agrees to maintain the current practice of allowing the Association the right to use interschool mail facilities and school mailboxes. This provision is subject to Federal Postal Service regulations and orders.
- G. The Association shall have, in each school building, the use of a bulletin board in each faculty lounge and teachers' dining room. The Association shaU have space on the bulletin board in the central office for Association notices. The Association shall have the right to use school computer equipment and email for Association business in accordance with state and federal law and District policy. The Association's designated representatives (ARE President, Elementary building Rep, and High School building Rep) shall have access and capacity to engage in union represented activities with members without loss of pay consistent with PECBA as amended by HB 2016.

H. Association Leave

An unpaid leave of absence of up to two (2) years may be granted at the discretion of the Board to any teacher, upon application, for the purpose of serving as an officer of the Association or on its staff. Upon return from such leave, such teachers shall be placed at the same position on the salary schedule as they would have been had they taught in the system during such period.

Article 23- Complaint Procedure

A. Procedural Requirement

Any complaint regarding a teacher made to any member of the administration by any parent, student or other person which does or may influence the evaluation or result in a record being placed in the personnel file of the teacher shall be processed according to this procedure.

- 1. Teachers shall be advised of any oral complaint within five (5) calendar days of the complaint only if the administration determines such is needed. Nothing in this section is intended to restrict any administrator from independently verifying information reported through this procedure.
- 2. The administration shall require any adult complainant to submit his/her complaint in writing and sign it. A copy of any written complaint shall be provided to the teacher within five (5) calendar days ofreceipt.
- 3. In instances of alleged sexual harassment, child abuse or "sexual conduct" as defined in ORS 339.370 will be investigated. These complaints shall be shared with the employee within ten (10) days of its first notice.
- 4. The parties agree that the District has no obligation to process as a complaint any notification by the police or outside agency of any on-going investigation unless the party files a District complaint or the District places the individual on administrative leave during the investigation.

B. Meetings

Whenever possible and/or feasible and when appropriate, the principal shall attempt to arrange a meeting between the complaining party and the teacher to discuss the matter at the end of the day. If the complaint is not resolved as a result of this first meeting, or ifno meeting is held, the principal and teacher shall meet to resolve the matter. The teacher must be provided written notice no less than 24 hours in advance of any such meeting, unless waived by the employee.

C. Right to Representation

The teacher shall have the right to be represented by the Association at any meetings or conferences regarding such complaint.

D. Nothing in this article shall be construed so as to prevent the District from reporting suspected criminal activity to the proper authorities.

Article 24 - Layoff/Recall (Reduction in Force

- A. In the event the Board in its discretion determines that a layoff or reduction in force is necessary, it will notify the Association president and the teachers to be affected as soon as practicable. The Board will then determine the teachers to be laid off by means of the following criteria:
 - 1. Licensure;
 - 2. Seniority;
 - 3. HB 2001 which modifies ORS: 342.934. "Qualified teacher with culture and linguistic expertise **must be retained** in order to maintain the proportion of teachers with culture or linguistic expertise compared to those without."
 - 4. Competence or merit if the Board desires to lay off a teacher with greater seniority, and retain a teacher with less seniority;
 - a. If the District desires to retain a teacher with less seniority than a teacher being released under this section, the District will have the burden of proof to show that the teacher being retained is more competent or meritorious. Licensure means the teacher has the proper Oregon Department of Education (ODE) and the Teacher Standards and Practices Commission (TSPC) license and endorsement to fill the remaining positions.
 - b. Seniority shall be defined as the employee's total length of continued service in the District as a licensed teacher. Seniority will be computed and accrue from the teacher's first date of actual service. Ties in seniority shall be broken by drawing lots on the first date of service for the employees involved to determine seniority. Seniority shall continue to accrue during authorized leaves of absence.
 - c. If the District decides to lay off by seniority, it will lay off unit members in reverse order of seniority.
 - d. The following are the definitions of competency and merit:

Competence: means the ability to teach a subject and/or grade level based on recent teaching experience related to that subject and/or grade level within the last ten (10) years or educational attainments, or both, but not based solely on being licensed to teach.

For purposes of this article these are defined by TSPC licensure requirements:

(1) grade level is defined within the following groupings: (K-6), and (7-8) and (9-12);

(2) subject area is defined as the specific program area (e.g., math, science, English, social studies, etc.).

Merit:

As defined in ORS 342.943. In order to utilize merit in the retention of a less senior employee, the District shall demonstrate a measurable performance basis for determining that the senior employee is less meritorious, such as the presence of negative evaluation or a program of assistance for improvement in place prior to March 15 of the layoff year.

e. The District shall make every effort to transfer teachers from courses scheduled for discontinuation to other positions for which they are licensed.

B. Recall

If, within twenty-seven (27) months of layoff, a vacancy occurs within the District for which a laid-off teacher is licensed, the recall procedure outlined below will be followed:

- 1. The District will institute a recall procedure which will recall teachers using the criteria in Section A, above. The District will institute a recall procedure which will ensure that teachers are recalled in the reverse order of layoff, provided the teacher is licensed/registered to teach in the vacant position.
- 2. Employees who wish to be considered for recall shall provide the District with teacher's address for recall notification. In the event of a recall, the District shall notify the teacher who has provided his/her address of the recall by certified mail, return receipt requested, sent to the last address given by the teacher to the District office. The teacher will have fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of receipt to notify the District of his/her intent to return. The teacher must thereafter be available to return to employment within thirty (30) days from the date the recall notice was received or, if employed elsewhere, at the time mutually agreed upon by the District and the employee. Failure of the teacher to respond within the 15 calendar days herein specified shall terminate a teacher's employment as a voluntary resignation.
- 3. All benefits to which a teacher was entitled at the time of layoff, including unused accumulated sick leave, seniority, and eligibility for sabbatical leave, will be restored to the teacher upon the teacher's return to active employment, and the teacher will be placed on the proper step of the salary schedule for the teacher's current position according to the teacher's experience and education.
- 4. No vacancy for a bargaining unit position shall be filled until all laid-off members have been offered recall to positions for which they qualify.
- C. Teachers covered by this article will have the option to continue insurance programs at their own expense, subject to the approval of the insurance carrier.

- D. Teachers covered by this article will be given consideration for substitute teaching; such will not affect teacher recall rights.
- E. The layoff and recall procedure applies to all members of the bargaining unit, except to those employees on a temporary teaching contract.
- F. Upon request, the District agrees to provide to the Association a complete list of all licensed employees, including each employee's date of hire and areas oflicensure.
- G. Any "appeal" from the Board's decision on layoff or recall pursuant to this article shall be in accordance with ORS 342.934 and will be by means of a grievance filed pursuant to the article on Grievance Procedure. The decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding.
 - H. Should the District close schools pursuant to Article 28, Funding, members of the bargaining unit shall be considered on layoff status for the duration of the closure. Additionally, the District agrees to consult with the Association through Labor Management meetings regarding the timing of the closure.

Article 25 - Tuition Reimbursement

A. Tuition Reimbursement

- 1. Upon evidence of successful completion, the District will reimburse the employee the cost of tuition in accordance with the following conditions:
 - (a) No more than twelve (12) credit hours will be reimbursed in a fiscal year; and
 - (b) Course(s) taken must be part of a degree program, required for certification or recertification, or those that are determined by the Superintendent, or designee to assist the teacher in becoming more proficient in his or her teaching field.
 - (c) Approval for tuition reimbursement pending the successful completion of the course(s) in question is to be received from the Superintendent, or designee before the course(s) are taken; and
 - (d) Reimbursement for summer courses will be paid to returning teachers on or before the first pay period of the next contract year with proper verification of having successfully completed the approved courses; and
 - (e) Approved courses taken during the school year will be reimbursed after the successful completion of the class; and
 - (t) Successful completion means "C" grade/pass or better; and
 - (g) Reimbursement for out of state tuition will not exceed the cost of comparable courses if taken at the University of Oregon or Oregon State University.
 - (h) An Association member who is involuntarily laid off by the District is not responsible for reimbursement percentages during the time of the involuntary lay off and the "clock" stops. The "clock" resumes once the employee returns to work and continues until a total of three years of work has been completed from the time of reimbursement.
- 2. Any teacher, after July 1, 2022, who takes advantage of tuition reimbursement program shall have their tuition reimbursement deducted from their final pay or make a check payable to the District prior to their last day if they leave the District less than three (3) school years after the time s/he received reimbursement subject to the following schedule:

Reimbursement Percentage by number of years senred:

Less than 1 year of service from date of reimbursement	100%
1 to 2 years of service from date of reimbursement	67%
2 to 3 years of service from date of reimbursement	33%
3+ years of service from date of reimbursement	0%

Article 26 - Strikes

- A. During the term of this Agreement, the Association and the members of the bargaining unit will not initiate, cause, permit, participate in, or join in any strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or any other concerted activity involving any dispute between the Association and the District. Participation in any of the above prohibited activities will be sufficient cause for disciplinary action, including discharge.
- B. There will be no lockout of members of the bargaining unit by the District as a consequence of any dispute arising between the District and the Association during the term of this Agreement.

Article 27 - District Rights

Except as otherwise expressly and specifically limited by the terms of this Agreement, the District retains all its customary, usual, and exclusive rights, decision-making prerogatives, functions, and authority connected with, or in any way incidental to, its responsibility to manage the affairs of the District or any part of the District. Except as specifically provided for in other parts of this contract, the District shall have no obligation to engage in collective bargaining with the Association during the term of this Agreement. This contract constitutes the full agreement between the parties. This section shall not be construed to limit the District's legal obligation to notify the Association and bargain upon demand over changes to mandatory subjects of bargaining, as required by law.

Article 28 - Funding

It is recognized by the parties that funds needed to fund this contract are subject to budget laws. The Oregon Legislature and the people of the State of Oregon have a role in the process. Therefore, it is understood that the District's obligation to perform on this contract is subject to the availability of funds. This agreement, therefore, is entered into based upon the following assumptions:

- A. If the District closes its schools because of a lack of funds, no member of the bargaining unit shall be entitled to any salary or associated payroll costs-provided in this Agreement while the schools are closed.
- B. This Agreement does not guarantee any level of employment.
- C. In the event that furlough days are implemented due to funding shortfalls, the District and the Association shall discuss the impacts in their regular Labor Management Committee meetings.
- D. If the District closes its schools because of lack of funds, then they will ensure that the closure does not extend in length to a point that the District does not pay its insurance premiums on behalf of staff. This might cause a prolonged closure to occur over two or more periods of time to ensure that insurance premiums are paid in full.

Article 29 - Personnel Files

- A. Personnel files are confidential **in** accordance with ORS 342.850 **(8).** Should the District move to electronic files, they shall be afforded the same confidentiality as hard copy files. Personnel files may be inspected by the individual concerned or by his /her authorized designee or representative.
- B. There shall be only one (I) official personnel file, and said file shall be the sole official repository for employee personnel information. Such files shall be maintained in a central location by the District. Unofficial working files may be maintained by the building principals.
- C. A teacher may request a review of his/her file with the superintendent to determine if questionable material should be removed from the file. Any material so removed or any reference to such material shall be destroyed. However, the decision to remove any material shall be made by the superintendent. Written disciplinary action shall be considered permanent parts of the teacher's personnel file and may not be removed. This provision is subject to the restrictions of **ORS** 342.850.
- D. Copies of material in the personnel file will be duplicated for the teacher and mailed to designated sources at the expense of the requesting teacher.
- E. No evaluation, disciplinary action (i.e., warning, reprimand, or suspension), or parental comment(s) will be placed in a teacher's personnel file until the teacher has been provided a copy. The teacher shall have the right to attach a statement to any material placed in the file.
- F. Material or evidence not previously recorded in the teacher's personnel file or not provided to the teacher will not be used by the District when considering demotion, discipline, or other involuntary change in employment status.

Article 30- 403(b) Benefit

Employees may elect to participate in a joint employer/employee benefit program. The program requires employees to match the district contribution to a 403(b) program.

- A. Employees who have completed one full school year will be eligible to receive a \$100 per month District match into the employee's 403(b) account.
- B. Employee 403(b) plans and District contributions will operate within the parameters of Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Service Code. The IRS rules and regulations governing 403(b) contributions will supersede any actual contractual obligations of the parties.

Article 31-Technology-based Alternative Instruction

In mutual recognition that Technology-Based Alternative Education programs can offer expanded educational opportunities to Reedsport's students, as well as our shared desire to facilitate the realization of such opportunities for these young people in a manner which is cost effective for the District's patrons, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

Nothing in the Agreement nor the labor relationship between the parties shall restrict the District's right to contract or subcontract out bargaining unit work and/or work being performed by members of the bargaining unit by means of distance learning," web-based, intra-district cable, microwave or other similar audio-visual technologies.

No employee will be required to add an additional class/group of students off site from the employee's physical assignment unless or until an MOU is negotiated.

College enrichment courses: The parties recognize the benefits in offering courses at the Reedsport Community Charter School provided by software programs, third-party curriculum providers or any accredited college under the following conditions:

- 1. Current courses and instructors will be used unless they do not meet any accredited institution's requirements.
- 2. Courses that require endorsement shall be taught by qualified District instructors unless none are available.
- 3. Upon request and approval, the District will reimburse employees for the costs associated with adding teaching endorsements in support of technology-based alternative education classes offered by the District. Additional work, outside of the contracted assignment, required for technology-based alternative education courses to meet State and federal academic credit content requirements will be compensated at the employee's hourly rate.

Article 32 - Signature Page

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Association has caused this Agreement to be signed by its president, and the Board has caused this Agreement to be signed by its chairman, attested by its clerk.

ASSOCIATION OF REEDSPORT EDUCATORS

REEDSPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Chair - Carey Jones

MAY30, 2025

Date

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix A-1-Salary Schedule 2025-2026

Step	BA	BA+45	MA/BA+75	MA+30/BA+105
0	\$45,537	\$48,725	\$51,912	\$55,100
1	\$47,586	\$50,774	\$53,961	\$57,149
2	\$49,635	\$52,823	\$56,011	\$59,198
3	\$51,684	\$54,872	\$58,060	\$61,247
4	\$53,734	\$56,921	\$60,109	\$63,296
5	\$55,783	\$58,970	\$62,158	\$65,346
6	\$57,832	\$61,020	\$64,207	\$67,395
7	\$59,881	\$63,069	\$66,256	\$69,444
8	\$61,930	\$65,118	\$68,306	\$71,493
9	\$63,979	\$67,167	\$70,355	\$73,542
10				
11	\$66,029	\$69,216	\$72,404	\$75,591
12	\$68,078	\$71,265	\$74,453	\$77,641
13	\$70,127	\$73,315	\$76,502	\$79,690
	\$72,176	\$77,413	\$78,551	\$81,739
14	\$74,225	\$79,462	\$81,056	\$84,699

Based on 190 days.

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix A-2 - Salary Schedule 2026-2027

Steo	BA	BA+45	MA/BA+75	MA+30/BA+105
5100	DA	DA + +3	MA/DA+75	WIA + 50/DA + 105
0	\$47,017	\$50,308	\$53,599	\$56,891
1	\$49,133	\$52,424	\$55,715	\$59,006
2	\$51,249	\$54,540	\$57,831	\$61,122
3	\$53,364	\$56,655	\$59,947	\$63,238
4	\$55,480	\$58,771	\$62,062	\$65,354
5	\$57,596	\$60,887	\$64,178	\$67,469
6	\$59,712	\$63,003	\$66,294	\$69,585
7	\$61,827	\$65,119	\$68,410	\$71,701
8	\$63,943	\$67,234	\$70,526	\$73,817
9	\$66,059	\$69,350	\$72,641	\$75,932
10	\$68,175	\$71,466	\$74,757	\$78,048
11	\$70,290	\$73,582	\$76,873	\$80,164
12	\$72,406	\$75,697	\$78,989	\$82,280
13	\$74,522	\$79,929	\$81,104	\$84,396
14	\$76,638	\$82,045	\$83,690	\$87,452

Based on 190 days.

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix A-3 - Salary Schedule 2027-2028

Step	BA	BA+45	MA/BA+75	MA+30/BA+10
				5
0	\$48,428	\$51,818	\$55,208	\$58,598
1	\$50,607	\$53,997	\$57,387	\$60,777
2	\$52,787	\$56,176	\$59,566	\$62,956
3	\$54,966	\$58,356	\$61,746	\$65,136
4	\$57,145	\$60,535	\$63,925	\$67,315
5	\$59,324	\$62,714	\$66,104	\$69,494
6	\$61,504	\$64,894	\$68,283	\$71,673
7	\$63,683	\$67,073	\$70,463	\$73,853
8	\$65,862	\$69,252	\$72,642	\$76,032
9	\$68,041	\$71,431	\$74,821	\$78,211
10	\$70,221	\$73,611	\$77,001	\$80,390
11	\$72,400	\$75,790	\$79,180	\$82,570
12	\$74,579	\$77,969	\$81,359	\$84,749
13	\$76,758	\$82,328	\$83,538	\$86,928
14	\$78,938	\$84,507	\$86,202	\$90,076

Based on 190 days.

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix B - Salary Schedule Index 2022-2025

	COL	LUMN			
		A	В	C	D MA+30
STEPS		BA	BA+45	MA BA+75	BA+105
	0	1.000	1.070	1.140	1.210
	1	1.045	1.115	1.185	1.255
	2	1.090	1.160	1.230	1.300
	3	1.135	1.205	1.275	1.345
	4	1.180	1.250	1.320	1.390
	5	1.225	1.295	1.365	1.435
	6	1.270	1.340	1.410	1.480
	7	1.315	1.385	1.455	1.525
	8	1.360	1.430	1.500	1.570
	9	1.405	1.475	1.545	1.615
	10	1.450	1.520	1.590	1.660
	11	1.495	1.565	1.635	1.705
	12	1.540	1.610	1.680	1.750
	13	1.585	1.700	1.725	1.795
	14	1.630	1.745	1.780	1.860

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT Appendix C Insurance Plan costs based on 2017-18 Program Year Costs/Current Employee Selection

Tiered Rates	Count	Rate	Dogwood Monthly	Annual	Rate	Dental 6 Monthly	Annual	District Totals
Employee only	12	550.13	6,601.52	79,218.22	44.43	533.11	6,397.27	85,615.49
Emp. + spouse	24	1,210.29	29,047.03	348,564.38	87.96	2,111.00	25,332.05	373,896.43
Emp. + children	10	1,045.29	10,452.86	125,434.26	89.28	892.82	10,713.78	136,148.04
Family	<u>Opt</u> out 1	36 1,705.47 3	61,397.03	736,764.34	136.38	4,909.84	58,918.10	795,682.44
Totals	9	95	107,498.43	1,289,981.20		8,446.77 <i>Les</i>	101,361.20 s Part-time W/H	1,391,342.40 40,500.00
								1,350,842.40

Group HRA funding**** \$107,157.60

BRA Plan:

Employees are enrolled in MODA Dogwood Plan (or equivalent) with deductibles of \$1,600/person and out-of-pocket limits of \$6,850/person at no additional premium cost to employee. (no payroll deduction)

Through HRA, deductibles are reduced to \$650 per person up to a maximum of 3.

Through HRA the maximum out-of-pocket is reduced to \$4,000 per person up to a maximum of 3.

Employees where both spouses work in the District will receive one enrollment in MODA dogwood, but will have no out-of-pocket deductible for up to 3 people and a \$2,000 per person maximum out-of-pocket per person for up to 3 people maximum.

Employees would be enrolled in Premier Dental Plan 6 (or equivalent) at no additional premium cost to employee. (no payroll deduction) Employees may purchase higher Dental Plans with difference between it and Plan 6 being paid by employee through payroll deduction on a pre-tax basis.

Employees are able to purchase vision coverage of their choice at employee's expense to be paid through payroll deduction on a pre-tax basis.

****These funds are set aside to pay for reimbursing employees for deductible and out-of-pocket amounts per the HRA plan based upon estimated utilization, as well as administration of the HRA plan. If claims exceed this amount, the District will increase funding to the HRA plan to ensure employees receive the benefits bargained.

The parties agree to maintain the insurance language record of Article 19 prior to the inception of the HRA in the 2018-2021 contract. Should the parties elect to discontinue the HRA or it become disallowed by the carrier or the legislature, the parties will return to the bargaining table. In the mean-time the base insurance cap paid by the District shall be the amount contributed per person at a composite rate to fund the HRA at the time it is ended.

REEDSPORT SCHOOL DISTRICT AppendixD Article 19 - 2016-18 Contract

- A. The District insurance program shall include the following programs:
 - I. Health/Hospitalization: Full-family coverage to be selected by the Insurance Committee.
 - 2. Dental: Full-family coverage to be selected by the Insurance Committee.
 - 3. Vision: Full-family coverage to be selected by the Insurance Committee.
 - 4. Life: Employee-only coverage to an amount not less than \$10,000 with AD&D provisions.
 - 5. Long-Term Disability (LTD):

Major Provisions include:

- a. Eligible Employees: All full-time licensed employees working twenty (20) or more hours per week
- b. Benefit Amount: 66 2/3% monthly earnings, not to exceed a \$5,000 maximum benefit
- c. Benefit Period: To age 65 for injury or sickness if eligibility occurs before age 60
- d. Elimination Period: 90 days for injury or sickness or end of sick leave, whichever is greater.
- e. Employer Contribution: 100%

В.

- f. Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
- For the term of the contract, the District agrees to pay for each eligible full-time employee \$1145 toward the premium costs for the 2014-2015 insurance year and \$1175 for 2015-16 insurance year. Employees hired for less than full time after July 1, 2007 shall have insurance benefits pro-rated based on the percentage of contract. All employees hired prior to July 1, 2007 working less than full time shall maintain full insurance benefits.
 - 1. Employees who work for the District and are also covered by insurance coverage of another employee who also works for the District will be eligible to receive only one District insurance contribution for both employees.
 - b. The amount that the District would have contributed toward the purchase of insurance premiums for the 2nd employee will be used by the District to cover additional expenses that the employee incurs as a result of only having single insurance coverage.
 - c. Qualifying additional expenses include reimbursement for the additional 20% costs of services and products or increased deductible that would have been covered by

having the dual insurance coverage. Employees can submit medical expenses for reimbursement on a quarterly basis.

- d. Should such elimination of dual coverage be eliminated by the carrier, the parties will return to the bargaining table on dual coverage.
- 2. Any employee contribution toward insurance premium will occur on the employee's pretax salary.
- 3. Employees who enroll in HSA (or another OEBB qualifying "High Deductible Plan") shall receive the difference between the District's maximum contribution and the premiums for their selected medical, dental and vision insurance in a Health Savings Account (HSA) on a monthly basis up to the maximum amounts allowable by law. Any dollars remaining of the difference in the CAP and HSA maximum shall be credited to the pool outline in Subsection 4 below.
- 4. Effective with the 20I0-2011 program year employees not covered by B-1 above who select an insurance package under the cap or who waive insurance shall have their insurance dollars under the cap put into a pool. Said pooled dollars will be divided evenly among unit members to reduce out-of-pocket of those selecting insurance over the cap amount. The total pool amount for the year shall be set upon the expiration of the fall open enrollment period.
- C. Should OEBB be dissolved and that results in a change in carriers that would impact an employee's right to choose his/her provider, the change requires Association approval. A joint insurance committee consisting of four (4) members of the bargaining unit, no more than four (4) administrators and four (4) members of the classified unit may be called to discuss insurance plan options for the following year.
- D. Teachers on unpaid leaves of absence shall be allowed to continue in any or all of the above insurance programs by paying the full premium costs, except while on OFLA/FMLA subject to the rules and regulations of the insurance carrier(s).